
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

COUNCIL 
AGENDA & REPORTS 

 
for the meeting 

 
Tuesday, 9 May 2023 

 
at 5.30 pm 

 
in the Council Chamber, Adelaide Town Hall 

 
 
 

© 2023 CITY OF ADELAIDE. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED. 
 

Public Document Pack



 
COUNCIL 

Meeting Agenda, Tuesday, 9 May 2023, at 5.30 pm 
 

 
 

Members: The Right Honourable the Lord Mayor, Dr Jane Lomax-Smith (Presiding) 
 Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor Martin 
 Councillors Abrahimzadeh, Couros, Davis, Elliott, Giles, Hou, Li, Noon, Dr Siebentritt and 

Snape 
 

  

Agenda 
 
Item  Pages 

  
1.   Acknowledgement of Country 

The Lord Mayor will state: 

‘Council acknowledges that we are meeting on traditional Country of the Kaurna 
people of the Adelaide Plains and pays respect to Elders past and present.  We 
recognize and respect their cultural heritage, beliefs and relationship with the land. 
We acknowledge that they are of continuing importance to the Kaurna people living 
today. 
And we also extend that respect to other Aboriginal Language Groups and other First 
Nations who are present today.’ 

 

 
2.   Acknowledgement of Colonel William Light 

The Lord Mayor will state: 

‘The Council acknowledges the vision of Colonel William Light in determining the site 
for Adelaide and the design of the City with its six squares and surrounding belt of 
continuous Park Lands which is recognised on the National Heritage List as one of 
the greatest examples of Australia’s planning heritage.’ 

 

 
3.   Prayer 

The Lord Mayor will introduce the prayer: 

‘Almighty God, we ask your blessing upon the works of the City of Adelaide; direct 
and prosper its deliberations to the advancement of your glory and the true welfare of 
the people of this City.  Amen’ 

 

 
4.   Memorial Silence 

The Lord Mayor will ask all present to stand in silence in memory of those who gave 
their lives in defence of their Country, at sea, on land and in the air. 

 

 
5.   Apologies and Leave of Absence 

Nil 

 

 
6.   Confirmation of Minutes - 26/4/2023 

That the Minutes of the meeting of the Council held on 26 April 2023, be taken as 
read and be confirmed as an accurate record of proceedings. 

Link to minutes view here. 

 

 
7.   Deputations 

Granted at time of Agenda Publication – 5 May 2023 
Nil 
 

 

 

https://meetings.cityofadelaide.com.au/documents/g746/Printed%20minutes%2026th-Apr-2023%2017.30%20Council.pdf?T=1


8.   Petitions 

Nil 

 

 
9.   Reports from Kadaltilla / Park Lands Authority and Committees    
 
 9.1   Advice of Kadaltilla / Park Lands Authority - 27 April 2023 4 - 5 
 
 9.2   Recommendations of the City Community Services and Culture Committee 

– 2 May 2023 
6 - 8 

 
 9.3   Recommendations of the City Planning, Development and Business Affairs 

Committee – 2 May 2023 
9 - 10 

 
 9.4   Reconciliation Committee - 3 May 2023 11 - 12 
 
10.   Reports for Council (Chief Executive Officer's Reports)    
 
 10.1   Appointment of Council Member to the Council Assessment Panel 13 - 16 
 
11.   Lord Mayor's Reports    
 
12.   Councillors' Reports    
 
13.   Questions on Notice 

Nil 

 

 
14.   Questions without Notice    
 
15.   Motions on Notice    
 
 15.1   Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Martin) - MoN - First Peoples Referendum 17 - 18 
 
 15.2   Councillor Couros - MoN - Activity Levels 19 - 20 
 
 15.3   Councillor Giles - MoN - Homelessness policy and support for rough 

sleepers 
21 - 22 

 
16.   Motions without Notice    
 
17.   Closure    

 



 

Council – Agenda – Tuesday, 9 May 2023

 
Tuesday, 9 May 2023 
Council 

Advice of Kadaltilla / Park Lands Authority 
- 27 April 2023 
 

 
Program Contact:  
Alana Martin, Manager 
Governance 

Public 
 

Approving Officer:  
Steve Zaluski - Acting Chief 
Operating Officer 

 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Adelaide Park Lands Authority known as Kadaltilla / Park Lands Authority is the principal advisor to both the 
Council and the State Government on the protection, management, enhancement and promotion of the Adelaide 
Park Lands. 

This report presents the advice of Kadaltilla / Park Lands Authority following their meeting on 27 April 2023 (see 
Agenda for Kadaltilla / Park Lands Authority on Thursday, 27th April, 2023, 5.30 pm - City of Adelaide)  

The advice provided at Kadaltilla is incorporated into the report as an item comes to Council (via Committee) for 
decision. 

 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
THAT COUNCIL 

1. Notes that Kadaltilla met on 27 April 2023. 

2. Notes that advice provided by Kadaltilla will be incorporated into the report as an item comes to Council 
(via Committee) for decision. 

 
 

DISCUSSION 
1. Kadaltilla met on 27 April 2023 and considered the following items: 

1.1. Workshop - Victoria Park (Park 16 / Pakapakanthi) Master Plan Update (to be presented at the City 
Planning, Development and Business Affairs (CPDBA) Committee on 6 June 2023) 

1.2. Revised Park Lands Lease and Licence Policy (advice to be in included in the report to CPDBA 
Committee on 6 June 2023 

THAT THE KADALTILLA / PARK LANDS AUTHORITY ADVISES COUNCIL:  

That Kadaltilla / Park Lands Authority: 

Supports the draft Park Lands Lease and Licence Policy as per Attachment A to Item 6.1 on the 
Agenda for the meeting of the Board of the Adelaide Park Lands Authority held on 27 April 2023. 

1.3. Standing Item: Update on the World Heritage Listing for the Adelaide Park Lands and Rural 
Settlement Landscapes 

That Kadaltilla / Park Lands Authority: 

1. Receives the report contained within Item 7.1 on the Agenda for the meeting of the Board of 
Kadaltilla held on 27 April 2023. 

Page 4

Agenda Item 9.1

https://meetings.cityofadelaide.com.au/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=155&MId=721


 

Council – Agenda – Tuesday, 9 May 2023

2. Invites the Planning Minister to a future Kadaltilla/Park Lands Authority meeting to discuss 
further activation of the project. 

 

- END OF REPORT - 

Page 5



Council - Agenda – Tuesday, 9 May 2023

 

Tuesday, 9 May 2023 
Council 

Recommendations of the City Community 
Services and Culture Committee – 2 May 
2023 
 
Strategic Alignment - Enabling Priorities 

 

Public Approving Officer:  
Ilia Houridis, Director City 
Shaping 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The City Community Services and Culture Committee considered the following Items at its meeting held on 2 May 
2023 and resolved to present to Council the following recommendations for Council determination:  

  Item 5.1 – Christmas Festival 

  Item 5.3 – Community Impact Grants Round 2 2022/23 

  Item 5.4 – G S Kingston Park / Wirrarninthi (Park 23) – Expression of Interest 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. Recommendation 1 – Christmas Festival 

THAT COUNCIL: 

1. Endorses the proposed costed options for consideration and approval through the 2023/2024 
Business Plan and Budget process, as outlined in Item 5.1 on the Agenda for the meeting of the 
City Community Services and Culture Committee held on 2 May 2023. 

2. Recommendation 2 – Community Impact Grants Round 2 2022/23 
THAT COUNCIL: 

1. Approves the following seven applications in the 2022/23 Community Impact Grants 
recommendations over $10,000, as per Attachment A to Item 5.3 on the Agenda for the meeting of 
the City Community Services and Culture Committee held on 2 May 2023: 

1.1. Crows Kumankga Cup, Adelaide Crows Foundation - $20,000 

1.2. The Big Busk, Adelaide Youth Orchestras Inc - $15,000 

1.3. Mercury Connections, Mercury CX - $15,000 

1.4. 50 Years Proud: Pride March and 50 years of Pride in Adelaide, Pride Adelaide - $13,000 

1.5. Barista Training Program, The Gold Foundation - $12,500 

1.6. Inclusive Archery - A Sport for All, Graham Winston - $12,500 

1.7. Culture Club - Accessible Location Guides, Access2Arts - $12,500 

2. Notes the 2022/23 Community Impact Grants Round Two Funding Recommendation reports. 

3. Recommendation 3 – G S Kingston Park / Wirrarninthi (Park 23) – Expression of Interest 
THAT COUNCIL: 

1. Authorises the negotiation of a five-year lease agreement with the Adelaide Cricket Club and West 
Adelaide Raptors Soccer Club as joint lessees of the community sports facilities in G S Kingston 
Park/ Wirrarninthi (Park 23). 

 

Page 6

Agenda Item 9.2



 

Council - Agenda – Tuesday, 9 May 2023

DISCUSSION 
 
1. The City Community Services and Culture Committee met on Tuesday 2 May 2023.  The Agenda with 

reports for the meeting can be viewed here. 

2. The following matters were the subject of deliberation: 

2.1. Christmas Festival 

THAT THE CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES AND CULTURE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS TO 
COUNCIL: 

That Council: 

1. Endorses the proposed costed options for consideration and approval through the 2023/2024 
Business Plan and Budget process, as outlined in Item 5.1 on the Agenda for the meeting of the 
City Community Services and Culture Committee held on 2 May 2023. 

2.2. North Adelaide Public Artwork – Illuminate Adelaide 

THAT THE CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES AND CULTURE COMMITTEE: 

1. Notes the report and the matter be deferred. 

2.3. Community Impact Grants Round 2 2022/23 

THAT THE CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES AND CULTURE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS TO 
COUNCIL: 

That Council: 

1. Approves the following seven applications in the 2022/23 Community Impact Grants 
recommendations over $10,000, as per Attachment A to Item 5.3 on the Agenda for the meeting 
of the City Community Services and Culture Committee held on 2 May 2023: 

1.1. Crows Kumankga Cup, Adelaide Crows Foundation - $20,000 

1.2. The Big Busk, Adelaide Youth Orchestras Inc - $15,000 

1.3. Mercury Connections, Mercury CX - $15,000 

1.4. 50 Years Proud: Pride March and 50 years of Pride in Adelaide, Pride Adelaide - $13,000 

1.5. Barista Training Program, The Gold Foundation - $12,500 

1.6. Inclusive Archery - A Sport for All, Graham Winston - $12,500 

1.7. Culture Club - Accessible Location Guides, Access2Arts - $12,500 

2. Notes the 2022/23 Community Impact Grants Round Two Funding Recommendation reports.  

2.4. G S Kingston Park / Wirrarninthi (Park 23) – Expression of Interest 

THAT THE CITY COMMUNITY SERVICES AND CULTURE COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS TO 
COUNCIL: 

That Council: 

1. Authorises the negotiation of a five-year lease agreement with the Adelaide Cricket Club and 
West Adelaide Raptors Soccer Club as joint lessees of the community sports facilities in G S 
Kingston Park/ Wirrarninthi (Park 23). 

3. The City Community Services and Culture Committee were also involved in 3 workshops on Housing Policy, 
Co-investing in Park lands Rejuvenation and Adelaide’s New Year’s Eve. 

 

 

DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Link 1 – City Community Services and Culture Committee Agenda 
 

Page 7

https://meetings.cityofadelaide.com.au/documents/g770/Public%20reports%20pack%2002nd-May-2023%2017.30%20City%20Community%20Services%20and%20Culture%20Committee.pdf?T=10


 

Council - Agenda – Tuesday, 9 May 2023

 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
Nil  
 

- END OF REPORT - 

Page 8



Council - Agenda – Tuesday, 9 June 2023

 

Tuesday, 9 May 2023 
Council 

Recommendations of the City Planning, 
Development and Business Affairs 
Committee – 2 May 2023 
 
Strategic Alignment - Enabling Priorities 

 

Public Approving Officer:  
Ilia Houridis, City Shaping 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
The City Planning, Development and Business Affairs Committee considered the following Items at its meeting held 
on 4 April 2023 and resolved to present to Council the following recommendation for Council determination:  
 

  Item 5.1 – Climate Action Plan 2022-2025 
 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
 
1. Recommendation 1 – Climate Action Plan 2022-2025 

THAT COUNCIL 

1. Endorses the Climate Action Plan 2022 – 2025 as provided in Attachment A to Item 5.1 on the 
Agenda for the meeting of the City Planning, Development and Business Affairs Committee held on 
2 May 2023. 

2. Notes the following priority actions from the Climate Action Plan 2022 – 2025 to commence in 
2023/2024: 

2.1. Implementation of a program to support electrification of new and existing commercial 
buildings within the city. 

2.2. Install an additional 100 public electric vehicle and bicycle chargers between 2022–2025 in 
collaboration with partners. 

2.3. Investigate opportunities to install a community battery or facilitate a community energy 
project. 

2.4. Investigate low carbon, green precinct options in collaboration with university partners. 

2.5. Revise the community emissions target with emission reduction pathways mapped. 

2.6. Integrate at least 75% electric vehicles into the City of Adelaide light passenger vehicle fleet 
by 2025 as cost effective and fit-for-purpose models become available, as a Foundation 
Partner of the SA Electric Vehicle Fleet Pledge. 

2.7. Convert all remaining city streetlights to efficient LED. 

3. Authorises the Chief Executive Officer to make minor amendments to the Climate Action Plan 
2022- 2025 as part of the graphic design process that do not substantively change the intent. 

 
 
 

Page 9

Agenda Item 9.3



 

Council - Agenda – Tuesday, 9 June 2023

DISCUSSION 
 
1. The City Planning, Development and Business Affairs Committee met on Tuesday 2 May 2023.  The Agenda 

with reports for the public component of the meeting can be viewed here. 

2. The following matter was the subject of deliberation: 

2.1. Climate Action Plan 2022-2025 

THAT THE CITY PLANNING, DEVELOPMENT AND BUSINESS AFFAIRS COMMITTEE 
RECOMMENDS TO COUNCIL: 

THAT COUNCIL 

1. Endorses the Climate Action Plan 2022 – 2025 as provided in Attachment A to Item 5.1 on the 
Agenda for the meeting of the City Planning, Development and Business Affairs Committee 
held on 2 May 2023. 

2. Notes the following priority actions from the Climate Action Plan 2022 – 2025 to commence in 
2023/2024: 

2.1. Implementation of a program to support electrification of new and existing commercial 
buildings within the city. 

2.2. Install an additional 100 public electric vehicle and bicycle chargers between 2022–2025 
in collaboration with partners. 

2.3. Investigate opportunities to install a community battery or facilitate a community energy 
project. 

2.4. Investigate low carbon, green precinct options in collaboration with university partners. 

2.5. Revise the community emissions target with emission reduction pathways mapped. 

2.6. Integrate at least 75% electric vehicles into the City of Adelaide light passenger vehicle 
fleet by 2025 as cost effective and fit-for-purpose models become available, as a 
Foundation Partner of the SA Electric Vehicle Fleet Pledge. 

2.7. Convert all remaining city streetlights to efficient LED. 

3. Authorises the Chief Executive Officer to make minor amendments to the Climate Action Plan 
2022- 2025 as part of the graphic design process that do not substantively change the intent. 

3. The City Planning, Development and Business Affairs Committee participated in workshop on the City Plan 
(Stage 1). 

 

 

DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
 
Link 1 – City Planning, Development and Business Affairs Committee Agenda 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
 
Nil  
 

- END OF REPORT - 

Page 10

https://cityofadelaideextranet.moderngov.com.au/documents/g764/Public%20reports%20pack%2002nd-May-2023%2019.00%20City%20Planning%20Development%20and%20Business%20Affairs%20Committee.pdf?T=10&$LO$=1


Council - Agenda – Tuesday, 9 May 2023

 

Tuesday, 9 May 2023 
Council 

Reconciliation Committee – 3 May 2023 
 

Strategic Alignment - Enabling Priorities 
 

Public 
 

Approving Officer:  
Ilia Houridis, Director City 
Shaping 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The Reconciliation Committee considered the following Items at its meeting held on 3 May 2023 and resolved to 
present to Council the following recommendation for Council determination:  
 

  Item 5.3 – Voice to Parliament 
 
 

RECOMMENDATION 
1. Recommendation 1 – Voice to Parliament 

That Council: 

1. Supports respectful conversations about constitutional recognition of Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islanders and the Voice to Parliament at State and Federal Government levels. 

2. Authorises the Lord Mayor to write to the State Government and Commonwealth Government on 
behalf of Council requesting that Local Governments and communities are kept informed on the 
proposals as they evolve. 

 

 

 
 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 9.4



 

Council - Agenda – Tuesday, 9 May 2023

DISCUSSION 
1. The Reconciliation Committee met on Wednesday 3 May 2023.  The Agenda with reports for the meeting 

can be viewed here. 

2. The following matters were the subject of deliberation: 

2.1. Stretch RAP 2021 – 2024 Implementation Progress Report – September 2022 – April 2023 

THAT THE RECONCILIATION COMMITTEE  

1. Notes the report on implementation of City of Adelaide Stretch Reconciliation Action Plan 2021- 
2024 for the period September 2022 to April 2023 provided at Attachment A to Item 5.1 on the 
Agenda for the meeting of the Reconciliation Committee held on 3 May 2023. 

2. Approves the placement of the Uluru Statement of the Heart as tabled at the meeting of the 
Reconciliation Committee held on 3 May 2023. 

2.2. 2023 NAIDOC Week 
THAT THE RECONCILIATION COMMITTEE: 

1. Notes the 2023 NAIDOC Week theme and activations throughout the CBD. 
2.3. Voice to Parliament 

THAT THE RECONCILIATION COMMITTEE RECOMMENDS TO COUNCIL: 

That Council: 

1. Supports respectful conversations about constitutional recognition of Aboriginal and Torres 
Strait Islanders and the Voice to Parliament at State and Federal Government levels. 

2. Authorises the Lord Mayor to write to the State Government and Commonwealth Government 
on behalf of Council requesting that Local Governments and communities are kept informed on 
the proposals as they evolve. 

3. The Reconciliation Committee also received two presentations on the Kids on Country and Kaurna Voices / 
Cultural Mapping projects. 

 

DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
Link 1 – Reconciliation Committee Agenda 
 

ATTACHMENTS 
Nil  
 

- END OF REPORT -  

Page 12

https://meetings.cityofadelaide.com.au/documents/g804/Public%20reports%20pack%2003rd-May-2023%2014.30%20Reconciliation%20Committee.pdf?T=10


Council – Agenda – Tuesday, 9 May 2023

 

Tuesday, 9 May 2023 
Council 

Appointment of Council Member to the 
Council Assessment Panel 
 
Strategic Alignment - Enabling Priorities 

Program Contact:  
Lisa Loveday, Acting Associate 
Director Regulatory Services 

Public Approving Officer:  
Clare Mockler, Chief Executive 
Officer 

 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
The City of Adelaide Council Assessment Panel (CAP) was established in October 2017 in accordance with the 
Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016 (SA) (‘the Act’). Section 83 of the Act stipulates membership 
of the CAP must be no more than five members, one of which may be a member of Council. 

This report seeks a Council decision to appoint a member of Council to serve with the current membership on the 
Council Assessment Panel until 31 December 2023. 

 

 

RECOMMENDATION 
THAT COUNCIL 

1. Approves the appointment of a Council Member to the City of Adelaide Council Assessment Panel until 
31 December 2023. 

2. Councillor ____________________ be appointed as a member of the Council Assessment Panel 
commencing from the date of this resolution and expiring on 31 December 2023. 

 

Page 13

Agenda Item 10.1



 

Council – Agenda – Tuesday, 9 May 2023

IMPLICATIONS AND FINANCIALS 
City of Adelaide 
2020-2024 
Strategic Plan 

Strategic Alignment – Enabling Priorities  
Development Assessment is integral in assisting the growth of the city’s population and to 
ensure the city is designed and developed so that it is safe and enjoyable for all. 

Policy Not as a result of this report 

Consultation Not as a result of this report 

Resource Not as a result of this report 

Risk / Legal / 
Legislative 

The formation and structure of the CAP is set out in section 83 of the Planning, 
Development and Infrastructure Act 2016. The recommendation of the report is in 
accordance with these provisions. 

If a Council Member is nominated for the position, and upon subsequent acceptance of the 
nomination by this Member, this Council Member will have to declare a material conflict of 
interest and vacate the Chamber before the matter is being discussed and voted on. This is 
required as the Member would receive remuneration in the form of sitting fees depending 
on the outcome of the consideration of the matter. 

Opportunities Not as a result of this report 

22/23 Budget 
Allocation 

The term is for the calendar year, and therefore funding is split across the 2022/23 and 
2023/24 budgets. 
General Operating - Sitting Fees – Council Member component is $550 per meeting which 
equates to a total of up to $4,400 for the remainder of the 2023 calendar year and $1,650 
this financial year. 

Proposed 23/24 
Budget Allocation 

General Operating - Sitting Fees – Council Member component is $550 per meeting which 
equates to a total of up to $4,400 for the remainder of 2023 calendar year and $2,750 this 
financial year. 

Life of Project, 
Service, Initiative 
or (Expectancy of) 
Asset 

Not as a result of this report 

22/23 Budget 
Reconsideration  
(if applicable) 

Not as a result of this report 

Ongoing Costs 
(eg maintenance 
cost) 

Not as a result of this report 

Other Funding 
Sources Not as a result of this report 

 

Page 14



 

Council – Agenda – Tuesday, 9 May 2023

DISCUSSION 
CAP legislative framework and purpose 
1. The Planning, Development and Infrastructure Act 2016 (‘the Act’) requires Councils to establish a CAP 

to assess and determine performance assessed applications that are subject to public notification. 

CAP membership requirements and operations 
2. The Act allows up to one Council Member to sit on the CAP. While this is not mandated and Council may 

elect not to appoint a Council Member to serve, one has traditionally been appointed. Council has already 
determined in December 2022 to appoint a Deputy Council Member. 

3. The term of the current Panel is until 31 December 2023, with meetings generally held monthly on a 
Monday at 5.30pm in the Colonel Light Room, Adelaide Town Hall. The current independent panel 
members are: 

3.1. Nathan Cunningham (Independent Member) 

3.2. Colleen Dunn (Independent Member) 

3.3. Mark Adcock (Independent Member) 

3.4. Emily Nankivell (Independent Member) 

3.5. Professor Mads Gaardboe (Deputy Independent Member)   

4. At its meeting on 13 December 2022, Council appointed Deputy Lord Mayor Martin to be the Council 
Member and Councillor Noon to be the Deputy Council Member on the CAP to 31 December 2023 (Link 1 
view here) 

5. As the current Council Member has resigned from their position on the CAP, this report seeks the 
appointment of a Council Member to sit on the CAP for the remainder of this term. The Deputy Council 
Member remains the same, however if this appointment creates a vacant Deputy Council Member 
position, there is also the option to appoint a Deputy Council Member. Having a Council Member and a 
Deputy Council Member ensures that when the Council Member is an apology, there remains the 
opportunity to have an Elected Member represented on the CAP. The Deputy Council Member would 
attend meetings as the Council Member when the Council Member is an apology.  

6. Independent Members on the CAP are required to be accredited as Planning Level 2 ‘Accredited 
Professionals’. This requires meeting criteria set out in the Act; however, this does not apply to a Council 
Member sitting on the CAP. 

7. The Act requires Council to be satisfied the Council Member nominated is appropriately qualified to act as 
a member of the CAP, based on the person’s experience in Local Government. 

8. All members of the CAP need to adhere to the ‘Assessment Panel members – Code of Conduct’ (Link 2 
view here). This requires, for example, that the Council Member on the CAP will not discuss development 
proposals or future development proposals with applicants or representors that are likely to be heard by 
the CAP. This is further expanded upon in the Plan SA Fact Sheet ‘Elected Members on Assessment 
Panels’ (Link 3 view here). 

9. There are no changes proposed to the current Independent Members of the CAP, CAP Terms of 
Reference (Link 4 view here) or CAP Meeting Procedures (Link 5 view here). 

10. Pursuant to the following Standing Orders: 

159. All elections for positions will be subject to confirmation by way of a resolution of Council. 

161. If the nomination, or nominations, match the position, or positions, available, a resolution of 
the Council will be required to confirm the outcome of the election process. 

162. Unless determined otherwise by Council, in the event of there being more nominations than 
required, an election by voting ballot of all Council Members present, will be undertaken to select a 
nominee. 

163. The nominee with the highest number of votes will be the preferred Council nominee. 

164. With the exception of the selection of a Deputy Lord Mayor, if the votes for two or more 
candidates are equal, unless the meeting decides to undertake another election by voting ballot 
for the candidates with equal votes, Council will draw lots to determine which candidate, or 
candidates, will be excluded. 

 

Page 15

https://meetings.cityofadelaide.com.au/documents/g495/Public%20minutes%2013th-Dec-2022%2017.30%20Council.pdf?T=11
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/Council_9_May_%202023_CAP_Link_2.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/Council_9_May_%202023_CAP_Link_3.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/Council_9_May_%202023_CAP_Link_4.pdf
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/Council_9_May_%202023_CAP_Link_5.pdf


 

Council – Agenda – Tuesday, 9 May 2023

166. In the event lots are drawn, the candidate, or candidates, remaining, will be identified as 
the preferred Council nominee. 

167. At the conclusion of a voting ballot or drawing of lots, a resolution of the Council will be required 
to confirm the outcome of the election process. 

11. Given the receipt of a pecuniary benefit outlined in paragraph 12, the Member nominated for appointment 
to the CAP will be required to declare a material conflict of interest in the appointment and leave the 
Chamber in accordance with the Conflict of Interest provisions of the Local Government Act 1999 (SA). 

Remuneration 
12. CAP members are paid a sitting fee of $550 per meeting. This fee is intended to remunerate the 

members for time spent reviewing agenda documents, attendance at meetings and undertaking site 
inspections in preparation for each item on the agenda. 

 

 

DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION 
Link 1 – Resolution for Item 10.4 of Council Meeting held on 13 December 2022 

Link 2 – Plan SA Code of Conduct ‘Assessment Panel Members – Code of Conduct’ 

Link 3 – Plan SA Fact Sheet ‘Elected Members on Assessment Panels’ 

Link 4 – CAP Terms of Reference 

Link 5 – Meeting Procedures for CAP term 2022/2023 
 

 

ATTACHMENTS 
Nil  
 

- END OF REPORT - 

Page 16



 

Council – Agenda – Tuesday, 9 May 2023

 

MOTION ON NOTICE 
Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor Martin will move a motion and seek a seconder for the matter shown below 
to facilitate consideration by the Council: 
‘That Council; 

Consistent with successive Council terms at the City of Adelaide’s in our strong support for reconciliation, agrees to 
recommend to all residents of the City a “yes” vote at the referendum to be held later this year to alter the 
Constitution to recognise the First Peoples of Australia by establishing an Aboriginal and Torres Strait Islander 
Voice and asks the Administration to; 

1. Develop a page on Council’s website setting out the resolution of Council supporting the “yes” vote, together 
with information about the referendum including, when available, locations at which votes can be cast in our 
local government area, and 

2.  Arrange for official Australian Government publications related to the referendum to be accessed with an 
online link or, in the case of printed material, through the Colonel Light Centre, Council libraries and 
Community Centres.’ 

 

 

ADMINISTRATION COMMENT 
1. The State Government and Federal Government have committed to establishing a First Nations Voice to 

Parliament and are running parallel but separate processes to fulfill these commitments. 

2. State Government's First Nations Voice Bill 2023 was introduced to Parliament on Thursday 9 February 
2023 and was introduced into the lower house on 7 March 2023. A Special Parliamentary Sitting and State 
Ceremony was held on Sunday 26 March 2023 to acknowledge the First Nations Voice Bill 2023. 

3. The Federal Government introduced the Referendum (Machinery Provisions) Amendment Bill 2022 to 
Parliament on 1 December 2022. The Bill will make amendments to ensure the referendum voting process 
and experience is similar to that of a Federal election. The Bill will be referred to the Joint Standing 
Committee on Electoral Matters, which will report in 2023.  

4. To date, the City of Adelaide has not adopted a formal position on the First Nations Voice to Parliament and 
has considered the vote on the Federal Referendum as a decision for an individual. 

5. On 3 May 2022, the First Nations Voice to Parliament was considered by the City of Adelaide Reconciliation 
Committee (Agenda Item 5.3). The Committee spoke and resolved in support of the approach and motion 
proposed by Council and specifically recommended that Council: 

1. Supports respectful conversations about constitutional recognition of Aboriginal and Torres Strait 
Islanders and the Voice to Parliament at State and Federal Government levels. 

2. Authorises the Lord Mayor to write to the State Government and Commonwealth Government on 
behalf of Council requesting that Local Governments and communities are kept informed on the 
proposals as they evolve. 

Tuesday, 9 May 2023 
Council First Peoples Referendum 

Council Member  
Deputy Lord Mayor, Councillor 
Martin 

Public Contact Officer:  
Ilia Houridis, Director City 
Shaping 

Page 17

Agenda Item 15.1

https://www.agd.sa.gov.au/aboriginal-affairs-and-reconciliation/first-nations-voice-to-the-south-australian-parliament


 

Council – Agenda – Tuesday, 9 May 2023

6. The First Nations Voice to Parliament was also considered at the Local Government Association Ordinary 
General Meeting on 14 April 2023 (Item 9.1). The LGA has not adopted a policy position on the Voice but 
endorsed the following: 

9.1  First Nations Voice to Parliament (LGA Secretariat) 

Moved West Torrens Seconded Charles Sturt that the Ordinary General Meeting: 

1.  requests that the LGA advocates that the Australian Government:  

a.  provides sufficient public funding for an effective information campaign to raise awareness of 
the national referendum on the First Nations Voice to Parliament;  

b.  allocates sufficient resources to cover the costs of any local forums facilitated by the Australian 
Government to support the national referendum process; and  

c.  in the event the national referendum is successful, ensures that any local government 
involvement in the establishment of Local and Regional Voices – as part of the governance 
structure of the Voice to Parliament – is fully funded by the Australian Government.  

2.  notes that the LGA does not have a policy position on the proposal for a First Nations Voice to 
Parliament and that councils may choose to adopt their own positions. 
 

7. If this motion is adopted, Administration will develop a City of Adelaide webpage supporting the “yes” vote for 
the First Nations Voice to Parliament in the Federal Referendum that provides information about how to vote 
and links to external resources; and will provide relevant hard copy materials in Council venues. 

8. Administration will maintain contact with the Australian Electoral Commission to access its resources to 
support the community to access information about the Federal Referendum. 

 
Should the motion be carried, the following implications of this motion should be considered. Note any costs 
provided are estimates only – no quotes or prices have been obtained: 
 
Public consultation 
 

City of Adelaide will make available to the community information about 
the First Nations Voice to Parliament and the Federal Referendum. 

External consultant advice 
 

Not applicable 

Legal advice / litigation (eg contract 
breach) 
 

Not applicable 

Impacts on existing projects 
 

Not applicable 

Budget reallocation 
 

Not applicable 

Capital investment 
 

Not applicable 

Staff time in preparing the workshop / 
report requested in the motion 
 

Not applicable 

Other 
 

Not applicable 

Staff time in receiving and preparing 
this administration comment 
 

5.5 hours 

 

- END OF REPORT - 

Page 18



 

Council – Agenda – Tuesday, 9 May 2023

 

MOTION ON NOTICE 
Councillor Couros will move a motion and seek a seconder for the matter shown below to facilitate 
consideration by the Council: 
‘That Administration: 

Report to Council how activity levels throughout the City of Adelaide differed during peak event periods such as the 
March Festival Season, Adelaide 500, Adelaide Motorsport Festival, Illuminate Adelaide, Harvest Rock, AFL 
Gather Round, etc, using available data sources including expenditure, foot traffic and UPark information.’ 

 

 

 

ADMINISTRATION COMMENT 
 
1. If the motion is adopted, advice that compares activity levels in the city during peak event periods will be 

prepared and provided to Council in August 2023. 

2. The advice will utilise data sources available to City of Adelaide and Adelaide Economic Development 
Agency including expenditure, foot traffic and UPark information.  

3. The proposed timing of the advice is to enable the inclusion of expenditure results from Tasting Australia. 

 
Should the motion be carried, the following implications of this motion should be considered. Note any costs 
provided are estimates only – no quotes or prices have been obtained: 
Public consultation 
 

Not applicable 

External consultant advice 
 

Not applicable 

Legal advice / litigation (eg contract 
breach) 

Not applicable 

Impacts on existing projects 
 

Not applicable 

Budget reallocation 
 

Not applicable 

Tuesday, 9 May 2023 
Council Activity Levels 

 

Council Member  
Councillor Couros 

Public 
 

Contact Officer:  
Clare Mockler, Chief Executive 
Officer 

 

Page 19

Agenda Item 15.2



 

Council – Agenda – Tuesday, 9 May 2023

Capital investment 
 

Not applicable 

Staff time in preparing the workshop / 
report requested in the motion 

Not applicable 

Other Not applicable 
 

Staff time in receiving and preparing 
this administration comment 

To prepare this administration comment in response to the motion on 
notice took approximately 4.5 hours.  

 

 

- END OF REPORT –  

 

Page 20



 

Council – Agenda – Tuesday, 9 May 2023

 

MOTION ON NOTICE 
Councillor Giles will move a motion and seek a seconder for the matter shown below to facilitate 
consideration by the Council: 
‘Considering there has been an increase in recent times of homelessness and rough sleepers in the city, Council 
calls for:  

1. A report from Administration on the current situation for homeless people and rough sleepers including the 
model for funding and support arrangements for homeless people and rough sleepers that currently apply in 
the City of Adelaide.  

2. A homelessness round table be developed to consult with key stakeholders about the role of Council in 
achieving zero functional homelessness and to be chaired by a Councillor.  

3. Administration provide proposals for funding support services and include these for consideration in the 
2023/24 Budget process.’ 

 

 

ADMINISTRATION COMMENT 
 

1. City of Adelaide has key partnerships that deliver on its strategic intent for zero functional homelessness. 
This includes the Adelaide Zero Partnership, South Australian Alliance to End Homelessness, and the 
Homeless and Vulnerable People Project. 

2. The Adelaide Zero Partnership produces an active dashboard on homelessness and this can be accessed 
online (Link 1 view here). 

3. Council’s current role in homelessness is set out in its Homelessness, Social Housing and Housing 
Affordability Policy 2022-2025 (Link 2 view here).  

4. A Chief Executive Officer Briefing was held on 28 February 2023 (Link 3 view here) to discuss Council’s 
existing housing related policy framework and documents. While not a decision making forum, as an 
outcome of this CEO Briefing, Administration undertook to develop a separate Homelessness Policy and 
separate Housing Policy. 

5. Administration is currently preparing content to progress a draft Homelessness Policy for consideration at the 
Community Services and Culture Committee on 6 June 2023 in line with the feedback from Council received 
at the CEO Briefing on 28 February 2023. 

6. If this motion is supported:  

6.1 a further report on the current situation for homeless people and rough sleepers, including the model 
for funding and support arrangements, can be circulated to Council Members via E-News in June 
2023. 

Tuesday, 9 May 2023 
Council Homelessness policy and support for 

rough sleepers 
Council Member  
Councillor Giles 

Public Contact Officer:  
Ilia Houridis, Director City 
Shaping 

Page 21

Agenda Item 15.3

https://saaeh.org.au/progress-dashboard/
https://d31atr86jnqrq2.cloudfront.net/docs/policy-homelessness-social-housing-and-housing-affordability.pdf?mtime=20220527110722&focal=none
https://aws-ap-southeast2-coa-dmzfileserver.s3.ap-southeast-2.amazonaws.com/AgendasMinutes/files08/Attachments/CCSC_2_May_2023_Housing_Link_1.pdf


 

Council – Agenda – Tuesday, 9 May 2023

6.2 A homelessness round table could be convened to consult with key stakeholders about the role of 
Council in achieving zero functional homelessness and to inform the draft Homelessness Policy. 

7. Draft budget proposals for the homelessness function have been prepared for Council’s 2023/2024 budget 
deliberations. 

 
Should the motion be carried, the following implications of this motion should be considered. Note any costs 
provided are estimates only – no quotes or prices have been obtained: 
Public consultation 
 

Not as a result of this motion  

External consultant advice 
 

Not as a result of this motion  

Legal advice / litigation (eg contract 
breach) 
 

Not as a result of this motion  

Impacts on existing projects 
 

Not as a result of this motion 

Budget reallocation 
 

Not as a result of this motion 

Capital investment 
 

Not as a result of this motion 

Staff time in preparing the workshop / 
report requested in the motion 

Budget proposals have been prepared for the current budget 
deliberations for 2023/2024.  
A report on the current situation for homeless people and rough sleepers 
including the model for funding and support could be provided in June 
2023.  
A roundtable would take approximately two months to prepare for, 
including coordinating speakers, content, room booking, catering and 
invitations.  

Other 
 

Not applicable 

Staff time in receiving and preparing 
this administration comment 
 

4.5 hours 

 
 

- END OF REPORT - 

Page 22


	Agenda
	9.1 Advice of Kadaltilla / Park Lands Authority - 27 April 2023
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	DISCUSSION

	9.2 Recommendations of the City Community Services and Culture Committee – 2 May 2023
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	DISCUSSION
	DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION
	ATTACHMENTS

	9.3 Recommendations of the City Planning, Development and Business Affairs Committee – 2 May 2023
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	DISCUSSION
	DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION
	ATTACHMENTS

	9.4 Reconciliation Committee - 3 May 2023
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	DISCUSSION
	DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION
	ATTACHMENTS

	10.1 Appointment of Council Member to the Council Assessment Panel
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	IMPLICATIONS AND FINANCIALS
	DISCUSSION
	DATA AND SUPPORTING INFORMATION
	ATTACHMENTS

	15.1 Deputy Lord Mayor (Councillor Martin) - MoN - First Peoples Referendum
	MOTION ON NOTICE
	ADMINISTRATION COMMENT

	15.2 Councillor Couros - MoN - Activity Levels
	MOTION ON NOTICE
	ADMINISTRATION COMMENT

	15.3 Councillor Giles - MoN - Homelessness policy and support for rough sleepers
	MOTION ON NOTICE
	ADMINISTRATION COMMENT




